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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Kent's Hill School Historic District is comprised of five archi-
tecturally or historically significant buildings. Dating from 1858 to
1932, these buildings have undergone little change. The Kent's Hill School

is located on the top of Kent's Hill, on the south side of State Route 17
in Readfield.

Buildings contributing to the character of the district:

1. Newton Gymnasium: 1932, Colonial Revival, 1% stories, brick, Doric
portico, cross-gabled hip roof. )

2. Blethen Hall (Headmaster's House): 1883-84, Queen Anne, 2% stories,
frame, clapboarded and shingled, facade porch, cross-gabled hip roof.

3. Bearce Hall (including Deering Chapel): 1873, Italianate with Mansard
roof, 3% stories, brick, 4-story facade tower with polygonal belfry.

4, Ricker Hall: 1893-94, Colonial Revival, 3% stories, frame, clapboarded,
hip roof.

5. Sampson Hall: 1858-60, Italianate, 4 stories, brick, pedimented pavillion,
flat roof. '
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Before the advent of publicly supported secondary schools in Maine, this’
level of education was largely carried on by private academies on one hand, or
seminaries, so-called, affiliated with some Protestant denomination on the other.
Academies were far more common and were scattered widely so that almost every
community of any size boasted one. Seminaries, however, existed in a very small
number and one of the earliest of these was what has now evolved as Kent's Hill
School, a private, non-denominational, preparatory school.

Luther Sampson, the founder, was a Revolutionary soldier originally from
Duxbury, Massachusetts, who, taking advantage of a veteran's land grant, moved
in 1799 to Readfield where he opened up a 215 acre farm. Evidently inspired
by the itinerant Methodist evangelist, Rev. Jesse Lee, who preached for a time
in the region, this industrious, but largely unlettered farmer formed, in 1821,
the Readfield Religious and Charitable Society which was duly incorporated.

The purpose of the organization being to provide Christian education for young
people, Sampson donatéd 140 acres of land for a school site together with a

new house, barns, sheds, cattle and sheep as well as equipment, all to the value
of over $10,000. :

The school, soon named Maine Wesleyan Seminary, began operation in 1824,
at first admitting boys only but shortly after becoming coeducational. An
unusual feature of the institution was that a large and productive farm with
orchards was maintained and many disadvantaged students in the early years were
able to work off their tuition through labor in the fields or barns. A fine
orchard is still maintained by the school.

0f the present buildings, the most noteworthy is Bearce Hall, a singularly
well proportioned and imposing 3% story Mansard brick structure with a central
pavillion and handsome bell tower, constructed in 1873, This was designed by
Francis H. Fassett of Portland, Maine's leading mid-nineteenth century architect.

Fassett, who was as much responsible as anyone for the rebuilding not only
of Portland, but also Bath and Augusta after disastrous fires, was the designer
of such structures as Corthell Hall on the Gorham Campus, the Portland Public
Library, and the Fifth Maine Regiment Building, all presently listed on the
National Register of Historic Places.

Wood framed Ricker Hall, an early Colonial Revival design, was also executed
by Fassett in 1893 and, while not as ambitious a structure as Bearce, combines
with it to leave the mark of this noted architect clearly stamped on the Kent's
Hill scene. ' o a ’ ' ' o
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Beginning at the easterly corner of the intersection.between Route 17 and
driveway running southerly from it and adjacent to the west end of Sampson Hall,
the district boundary runs easterly along the south side of Route 17 to a point
50 feet beyond that point where an extension of the east facing wall of Newton
Gymnasium would intersect with said road. From this point the line turns 90°
and runs south, parallel to the east facing wall of Newton Gymnasium for 400 (see
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where a further 90° turn to the north will return it to the point of beginning.
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